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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
To The Members of Stove Kraft Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Stove Kraft Limited
("the Parent”) and its partnership firm considered as subsidiary (the Parent and its subsidiary
together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at
31** March 2019, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (‘Ind AS’), and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group
as at 31 March 2019, and their consolidated profit, their consolidated total comprehensive
income, their consolidated cash flows and their consolidated changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We .conducted .our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

e The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director Board’s report including Annexures to
Director’s report but does not include the consolidated financial statements, standalone
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

e Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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¢ In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, place reliance on the work of the other auditors
and consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

+ If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Group
in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The
Board of Directors of the Parent and the partners of the partnership firm included in the Group
are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Parent, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Parent and the
partners of the partnership firm included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of
the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends
to liquidate or cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors of the Parent and the partners of the partnership firm included in the
Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

\
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- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Parent Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

« FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entity
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entity included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are
the independent auditors.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
guantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements
in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent and such other entity
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

"
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As

a)

b)

d)

f)

required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including
Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the
Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent as
on 31st March, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Parent, in respect
of one of the directors, disqualification was attracted u/s 164(2) of the Act, however the
Parent has received an order to maintain status quo of the directorship of the director
from National Company Law Tribunal as referred in note no. 46 and all other directors
are not disqualified as on March 31st, 2019 from being appointed as director in the term
of section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in

 “Annexuré A” which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Parent. Our report expresses

g)

h)

an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Parent.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Parent to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on
the consolidated financial position of the Group;

i) The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

-~
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iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Parent.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 008072S)

J-\C;Wk

S. Sundaresan
Partner
(Membership No. 25776)
BENGALURU, June 19, 2019
SS/IKS/2019:
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ANNEXURE "A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and
for the year ended March 31, 2019, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of Stove Kraft Limited (hereinafter referred to as “"Parent”), as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Parent which is the only company of the Group incorporated in
India to which reporting on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act is applicable, is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI)". These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the Parent’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Parent’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note”) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Parent’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

\!
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that
the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadeguate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Parent, has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively
as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Parent considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 008072S)

o Bsdic mass

S. Sundaresan
Partner
(Membership No. 25776)
BENGALURU, June 19, 2019
SS/IKS/2019



Stove Kraft Limited

(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)

Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Amount in Rupees Millions except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018 [ April 01, 2017
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 3(a) 1,787.14 1,806.24 1,852.21

Capital work-in-progress 17.30 6.08 0.86

Intangible assets 3(b) 18.16 3599 55.07

Financial assets

Investments 4 - - -

Other financial assets 5 50.96 3801 30.88
Non-current tax asset (net) 6 46.57 47.14 47.64
Other non-current assets % 17.98 34.62 22.56

Total non-current assets 1,938.11 1,968.08 2,009.22
Current assets
Inventories 8 974,14 1,051.38 726.27
Financial assets
Trade receivables 9 896 36 795.52 592.84
Cash and cash equivalents 10(a) 285.24 4.00 5.42
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents as above 10(b) 29.55 33.81 31.25
Loans 11 4.52 3:37 70.30
Other financial assets 12 1120 1.69 0.61
Other current assets 13 13137 93.03 94 86
Total current assets 2,332.58 1,982.80 1,521.55
Total assets 4,270.69 3,950.88 3,530.77
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 14(a) 247.17 189.00 189.00
Other equity 14(b) (873.18) (1,975.56) (1,851.11)
Equity attributable to owners of the company (626.01) (1,786.56) (1,662.11)
Non-controlling interests 15 247 2.14 2.54
Total Equity (623.84) (1,784.42) (1,659.57)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 16 2.100.26 3,113.05 2,867.47

Other financial liabilities 17 96.01 148.27 169.04
Provisions 18 46.12 5 34.14 30.70

Total non - current liabilities 2,242.39 3,295.46 3,067.21
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 19 999.44 809.58 781.19

Trade payables 20

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 59.87 40,28 8.09

(11) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 1,281.12 1,411.32 1,074.31

enterprises ;

Other financial liabilities 21 237.66 110.21 97.47
Provisions 22 15.02 16.07 77.88
Other current liabilities 23 53.92 52.24 78.09
Current tax liabilities (net) 24 5.11 0.14 6.10

Total current liabilities 2,652.14 2,439.84 2,123.13
Total liabilities : 4,894.53 5,735.30 5,190.34
Total equity and liabilities 4,270.69 3,950.88 3,530.77

See accompanying notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

In terms of our report attached.
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No: 0080728
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Managing Director Director
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Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary

Membership Number: FCS 7119
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Date - June 19, 2019
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Stove Kraft Limited

(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

(Amount 1n Rupees Millions except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No.| For the year For the year
ended March 31, | ended March 31,
2019 2018
Revenue from operations 25 6,409.38 5,289.52
Other income 26 16.60 56.33
Total Income 6,425.98 5,345.85
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 27 3,175.40 2411.19
Purchase of stock in trade 28 1,326.00 1,203.26
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 29 (114.78) (78.96)
Excise duty - 53.33
Employee benefits expenses 30 697.95 590.87
Finance cost 31 179.18 169.35
Depreciation & amortization expenses 32 12441 119 69
Other expenses 33 1,026.59 1,010.11
Total expenses 6,414.75 5,478.84
Profit/(Loss) before tax 11.23 (132.99)
Tax expense/(benefit)
Current tax expense for current year 4.60 =
Current tax expense relating to prior year 0.28 (5.37)
Net tax expense / (benefit) 4.88 (5.37)
Profit/(Loss) for the year 6.35 (127.62)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit or Loss
Remeasurement of the defined benefit Plans - Gains / (losses) 1.64 1.75
Items that will be reclassified to Statement of Profit or Loss
Fair value changes on cash flow hedges 0.05 1.24
Total other comprehensive income for the year 1.69 2.99
Total comprehensive Income/(loss) for the year 8.04 (124.63)
Profit / (Loss) for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company 6.32 (127.44)
Non controlling interests 0.03 (0.18)
6.35 (127.62)
Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Owmers of the Company 1.69 299
Non controlling interests - -
1.69 2.99
Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company 8.01 (124.45)
Non controlling interests 0.03 (0.18)
8.04 (124.63)
Earnings per share
- Basic (in Rs.){Face value of Rs. 10 each) 38 0.29 (6.74)
= Diluted (in Rs.) (Face value of Rs. 10 each) 38 0.29 (6.74)

See accompanying notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

In terms of our report attached.
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No: 0080728

S. Sundaresan

Partner
Membership Number: 25776

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

P &)

‘(,, Rajendra J Gandhi
‘ Managing Director

DIN: 01646143

DIN: 07623685

Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary
Membership Number: FCS 7119

Place : Bengaluru

Date © June 19,2019

Shashidhar SK

Place : Bengaluru
Date : June 19, 2019




Stove Kraft Limited

(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)

Consolidated Statement of Cashflows

(Amount in Rupees Millions except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended| For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Cashflow from operating activities
Net Profit / (loss) before tax 11.23 (132.99)
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation expense 124.41 119.69
Provision for doubtful trade and other receivables, loans and advances and bad debts written off] 22.07 59.65
(net)
Liability no more required written back (12.36) (41.85)
Interest on deposit with bank (1.66) (1.80)
Government grants - (2.52)
(Profit) / loss on fair valuation of derivative instruments 4.03 (1.33)
Loss on financial liability designated at FVTPL - 153.80
(Profit) / loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (0.13) 1.02
Finance cost 179.18 169.35
Net unrealised exchange (gain) / loss (7.82) 298
Operating cash profit before changes in working capital 318.95 326.00
Changes in working capital
Adjustment for (increase)/ decrease in operating assets :
Other financial assets (16.88) 43,79
Inventories 7724 (325.11)
Trade receivables (123 30) (247.93)
Other assets (24.62) (12.47)
Adjustment for increase/ (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Other financial liabilities (22.39) 18.35
Trade payables (92.04) 343.34
Other current liabilities 1.68 (25.85)
Provisions 12.62 9.47
Cash generated from operations 131.06 129.59
Net income taxes (paid) / refund received 0.66 (0.09
Net cash generated from /(used in) operating activities (A) 131.72 129.50
Cashflows from investing activities
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipments (including capital advance) (74.43) (63.18)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipments 0.13 232
Interest received on bank deposits 1.93 1.93
Movement of margin money deposit with banks (net) 4.26 (2.56)
Net cash generated from /(used in) in investing activities (B) (68.11) (61.49
Cash flows from Financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 250.00 125.00
Repayment of long-term borrowings (38.76) (56.56)
Proceeds/(repayment) from short-term borrowings (net) 191.87 26.76
Finance cost (185.48) (164.63)
Net cash generated from /(used in) financing activities (C) 217.63 (69.43
" |Net decrease in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C) 281.24 (1.42)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 4.00 542
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year* (Refer note 10(a)) 285.24 4.00
* Comprises:
(a) Cash on hand 0.55 0.82
(b) Balances with banks:
[n current accounts 89.69 3.18
In fixed deposits 195.00 -
Total 285.24 4.00

The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) - Statement of

cash flows.

See accompanying notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

In terms of our report attached.
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No: 0080728 Y
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Partner {2 \ACCOUNTANTS. Managing Director
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Shashidhar SK

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Director
DIN: 07623685

Q

Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary

Membership Number: FCS 7119

Place: Bengaluru
Date : June 19, 2019

Place : Bengaluru
Date ;. June 19,2019
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Stove Kraft Limited
(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

o

Corporate information

Stove Kraft Limited (formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited) (the ‘Company’ / ‘SKL’) is a company domiciled in India, with its registered
office situated at Bengaluru. It is engaged primarily in the business of manufacturer of pressure cookers, LPG stoves, non-stick cookware,
stoves and trader of other kitchen and electrical appliances under the brand name “Pigeon” and “Gilma”.

The Company changed its name from Stove Kraft Private Limited to Stove Kraft Limited on August 13, 2018.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its partnership firm considered as subsidiary (together known as the “Group™)
comprise of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, Consolidated Statement of changes in equity and significant accounting policies and explanatory
notes (collectively, the “Consolidated Financial Statements’).

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been authorised for issuance by the Company's Board of Directors on June 19, 2019.

2 Significant accounting policies

2.1 Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS™) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2017 and other relevant provisions of the Act as applicable. For periods up
to and including the year ended March 31, 2018, the Group prepared its financial statements in accordance with the then applicable
Accounting Standards in India (‘previous GAAP). The Group has decided to voluntarily adopt Ind AS for the financial year ended March
31, 2019 onwards. In accordance with the transition provision specified under Ind AS 101, the date of transition to Ind AS is April 01,
2017. These are the Group’s first Ind AS financial statements.

2.2 Basis of of preparation and presentation
The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for:
- certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments), plan assets of the defined benefit plan that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period;
- fixed assets of the Group which were fair valued as explained in note 3(a)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
arc described as follows:

@ Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

© Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

© Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

2.3 First-time adoption of Ind AS
The Group has prepared the Opening Consolidated Balance Sheet as per Ind AS as of April 1, 2017 by recognising all assets and liabilities
whose recognition is required by Ind AS, not recognising items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by Ind AS, by reclassifying
items from previous Indian GAAP to Ind AS as required under Ind AS, and applying Ind AS in measurement of recognised assets and
liabilities. However, this principle is subject to the certain exception and certain optional exemptions availed by the Group as detailed
below.
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2.4

Stove Kraft Limited
(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

a. Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:
The Group has elected to use fair value of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets in its opening Ind AS Balance sheet as
deemed cost.

b. Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities:
The Group has applied the derecognition requirements of financial assets and financial liabilities prospectively for transactions occurring on
or after the transition date.

¢. Impairment of financial assets:

The Group has applied the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively, however, as permitted by Ind AS 101, it has used
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk at the date that financial
instruments were initially recognised in order to compare it with the credit risk at the transition date. Further, the Group has not undertaken
an exhaustive search for information when determining, at the date of transition to Ind ASs, whether there have been significant increases in
credit risk since initial recognition, as permitted by Ind AS 101.

d. Past Business Combination
The Group has elected not to apply Ind AS 103 Business Combination retrospectively to past business combinations that occurred before
the transition date of April 1, 2017.

Basis of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and the entities controlled by the Company and
its partnership firms. Control is achieved where the Company:

* has power over the investee

* 1s exposed to, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

» ability to use its power to effect its returns

The Company reassess whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a Partnership firm begins when the Company obtains control over the partnership firm and ceases when the Company loses
control of the partnership firm. Specifically, income and expenses of a partnership firm acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statements of profit and loss from the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control
partnership firm.

Profit or loss and each component of total comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of partnership firms is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having deficit balance.

Where necessary adjustments are made to financial statements of partnership firms to bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group's accounting policies.

The financial statements of the Company and its partnership firm Companies have been combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together
like items of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and cash flows, after eliminating intra-group balances, intra-group transactions and
resulting unrealised profits or losses.

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the financial statements of Stove Kraft Limited and its partnership firms as set out below.

) % of holding
::::e;fhtil;eﬁm ln(éz::cf:ya t(i];.n As at March 31, | As at March 31, As at April 01,
: 2019 2018 2017
Stove Kraft India India 99% 99% 99%
Saya Industries India - -* 95%

*Note: During the year ended March 31 2018, Saya Industries got dissolved.




Stove Kraft Limited
(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.5 Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Revenue Recognition
i Sale of goods

Effective 01 April 2018, the Group adopted IND AS 115, ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ using the modified retrospective
method. In accordance with this, the comparatives have not been retrospectively adjusted and no material impact was recognised.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when control of the products being sold is transferred to our customer and when there are no
longer any unfulfilled obligations.

The performance obligations in the contracts are fulfilled at the time of dispatch, delivery or upon formal customer acceptance depending on
customer terms.

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, after deduction of any trade discounts, volume rebates, loyalty
benefits and any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government such as goods and services tax, etc. Accumulated experience is used
to estimate the provision for such discounts and rebates. Revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable a significant
reversal will not occur.

ii. Export entitlement

Government incentives are accrued for based on fulfilment of eligibility criteria for availing the incentives and when there is no uncertainty
in receiving the same.

fii. Interest Income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of Property, Plant
and Equipment comprises its purchase price, net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties, other taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, other
incidental expenses.

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the'asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation on Property. Plant and Equipment has been provided on the straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule 11
to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the following categories of assets, in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed as
under based on technical advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the
asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes. manufacturers warranties and maintenance support, etc. Individual
assets costing less than Rs.5.000/- are depreciated in full in the year of purchase.

Assets Useful Life in years
Leaschold Improvements 3-5 Years or over the lease period
whichever is lower
Office Equipments 5 Years

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.




Stove Kraft Limited
(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(¢) Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a

prospective basis.

The useful lives of intangible assets that is considered for amortization of intangible assets are as follows:

Intangible Assets Use ful Life in years
Technical Know How 5
Computer Software 6

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

(d) Investmenté in associate

Investment in associate is measured at cost less impairment.

(e) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of weighted average cost and the net realizable value. Cost includes purchase cost and all other charges
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition including octroi and other levies, transit insurance and receiving charges.

Work-in-progress and finished goods include appropriate proportion of overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less all estimated costs of completion and estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

(f) Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) arc
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in statement of profit and loss.

A. Financial Assets:
i. Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is to
hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and contractual terms of financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset, or where appropriate a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Stove Kraft Limited
(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ii. Financial Assets at fair value through other comprehensive Income

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income ('FVTOCI") if these financial assets are held within
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and selling financial assets.

iii. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL') unless it is measured at amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction cost directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

iv. Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss. The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivable.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting period, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 months ECL is used to provide
for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12 months ECL.

Lifetime ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The
12 months ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the entity expects to receive (i.c. all shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to
consider:

i. All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension etc.) over the expected life of the financial
instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required
to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument;

ii. Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that arc integral to the contractual terms.

As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss on portfolio of its trade receivable. The provision
matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward- looking
estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/expense in the statement of profit and
loss. This amount is reflected under the head other expenses in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various
financial instruments is described below:

Financial assets measured at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables:

ECL is presented as an allowance, i.¢. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the
net carrying amount.: Until the asset meets write off criteria, the Group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying
amount.

v. Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in statement of profit and loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in statement of profit and loss on
disposal of that financial asset.




Stove Kraft Limited
(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

C. Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate risks,
including foreign exchange forward contracts and cross currency interest rate swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss immediately unless
the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in Statement of profit and
loss depends on the nature of the hedging relationship and the nature of the hedged item. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the
fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

D. Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that are not financial assets within the scope of Ind AS 109 are treated as separate
derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not measured
at FVTPL.

E. Hedge Accounting
The Group designates certain hedging instruments as either fair value hedges or cash flow hedges.

Al the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along
with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge
and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or
cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk.

i Fair value hedges

Changes in fair value of the designated portion of derivatives that qualify as fair value hedges are recognised in Statement of profit and loss
immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. The change
in the fair value of the designated portion of hedging instrument and the change in the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for
hedge accounting,

ii. Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion
is recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity relating to (effective portion as described above)
are reclassified to statement of profit and loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same line as the recognised
hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for
hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity will be recognised in statement of
profit and loss on such event.

(g) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand and at banks and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Stove Kraft Limited
(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(h) Foreign Currency transactions and translations

The functional currency of the Group is Indian Rupee (Rs.).

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Exchange differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the date when the fair value was determined.

(i) Employee Benefits
Defined Contr_ibutipn Plan

The Group's contribution 1o provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as defined contribution plans and are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Defined Benefit Plan

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity (un-funded), the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit
method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each reporting period. Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and
losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected
immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to the statement
of profit and loss. Past service cost is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is
calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are
categorised as follows:

*service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);

*net interest expense or income; and .

sre-measurement

The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in the statement of profit and loss in the line item “Employee benefit
expenses. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance
sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Group’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to
the present value of any econemic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

Short-term employee benefits
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are

recognised during the year when the employees render the service. These benefits include performance incentive and compensated absences
which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Long-term employee benefits

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect of services provided by the employees up to the reporting date.




Stove Kraft Limited
(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(j) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs include:

(i) interest expense calculated using the effective interest rate method,
(ii) exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest
costs.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs cligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in Statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.
(k) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are initially capitalised as assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease
obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Rental expense from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals
are structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases,
such increases arc recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred. i

(I) Income Taxes
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the
Consolidated statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax losses can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that arc expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Stove Kraft Limited
(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Current and deferred tax for the period

Current and deferred tax are recognised in statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively.

(m) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. The amount
recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is
material). These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not,
require an outflow of resources. Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.
Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements.

(n) Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest Company of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-gencrating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of profit
and loss.

(o). Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing statement of profit and loss attributable to equity sharcholders of the Group by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic EPS and also weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive
potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.

(p) Share issue expense

The transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for as a deduction from equity to the extent they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction.
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Stove Kraft Limited
(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.6 Use of estimates and management judgments

In application of the accounting policies, which are described in note 2.4, the management of the Group is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and futurc periods. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements used in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the
following notes:

1. Useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The useful life of the assets are determined based on technical advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the
asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and
maintenance.

2. Impairment

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. To determine the recoverable amount, management estimates expected discounted future cash flows from each asset or cash-
generating unit.

3. Impairment of financial assets

The impairment assessment for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected cash loss rates. The Group uses
Judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Group's past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of the reporting period.

4, Deferred tax

Deferred income tax liabilities arc recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred income tax asset are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

5. Fair value

Management uses valuation techniques in measuring the fair value of financial instruments where active market quotes are not available. In
applying the valuation techiniques, management makes maximum use of market inputs and uses estimates and assumptions that are, as far as
possible, consistent with observable data that market participants would use in pricing the instrument. Where applicable data is not
observable, management uses its best estimate about the assumptions that market participants would make. These estimates may vary from
the actual prices that-would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

6. Post-retirement benefit plans

The obligation arising from the defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions which include discount rate, trends
in salary escalation and vested future benefits and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined with reference to market yields at each
financial year end on the government bonds.

7. Provisions and contingencies

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of resources, and on past
experience and circumstances known at the reporting date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may therefore vary from the
figure estimated at end of each reporting period.




Stove Kraft Limited
(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.7 Standards issued but not yet effective
Ind AS 116 Leases :

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind AS 116 will replace the existing leases Standard,
Ind AS 17 Leases, and related Interpretations. The Standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and
requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is of
low value. Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to the statement of profit and loss. The Standard also contains enhanced
disclosure requirements for lessces. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17,

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or afier April 1, 2019. The standard permits two possible
methods of transition:
* Full retrospective — Retrospectively to cach prior period presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors
* Modified retrospective — Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard recognized at the date of initial
application either by:

Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability as the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset either as:

* Its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted at lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate at the date of initial application or

* An amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments related to that lease recognized
under Ind AS 17 immediately before the date of initial application

Certain practical expedients are available under both the methods.

The Group is currently assessing the impact on adoption of this standard on the Group's financial statements.

Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments :

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which is
to be applied while performing the determination of taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates,
when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12, According to the appendix, companies need to determine the
probability of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the companies have used or plan to use
in their income tax filing which has to be considered to compute the most likely amount or the expected value of the tax treatment when
determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition -

1) Full retrospective approach — Under this approach, Appendix C will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in
accordance with Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, without using hindsight and

if) Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix C recognized by adjusting equity on initial application, without
adjusting comparatives.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019, The Group is currently
assessing the impact on adoption of this standard on the Group's financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 12 — Income taxes :

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified limited amendments to Ind AS 12 'Income Taxes'. The amendments
require an entity to recognise the income tax consequences of dividends as defined in Ind AS 109 when it recognises a liability to pay a
dividend. The income tax consequences of dividends are linked more directly to past transactions or events that generated distributable
profits than to distributions to owners. Therefore, an entity shall recognize the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other
comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events. The amendment will
come into force for accounting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019.

The Group is currently evaluating the effect of the above on its financial statements.
Amendment to Ind AS 19 — plan amendment, curtailment or settlement

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’, in connection with accounting
for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.

The amendments require an entity:

* to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement; and

* to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was
not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling,

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or afier 1 April 2019. The Group is currently evaluating the
effect of this amendment on the financial statements.
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Stove Kraft Limited

(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amount in Rupees Millions except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Note
3(b) Intangible Assets
Particulars Computer Technical Total
software know how
Deemed cost as at 01 April, 2017 7.93 47.14 55.07
Additions 1.28 - 1.28
Disposals - - -
Gross block as at 31 March, 2018 9.21 47.14 56.35
Amortisation
Amortisation for the year 2.89 17.47 20.36
Eliminated on disposal of assets - - -
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March, 2018 2.89 17.47 20.36
Carrying amount as at 31 March, 2018 6.32 29.67 35.99
Opening Gross block as at 1 April, 2018 9.21 47.14 56.35
Additions 0.79 023 1.01
Disposals - - -
Gross block as at 31 March, 2019 10.00 47.37 57.36
Amortisation
Opening accumulated amortisation 2.89 17.47 20.36
Amortisation for the year 2.40 16.44 18.84
Eliminated on disposal of assets
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March, 2019 5.29 33.91 39.20
Carrying amount as at 31 March, 2019 4.71 13.46 18.16

The Group has elected to fair value all of its intangible assets as of transition date and use that value as its deemed cost as of
the transition date.

The fair value approximates the carrying value of all the intangible assets




Note

(i)

Stove Kraft Limited

(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amount in Rupees Millions except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Investments

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
April 01, 2017

In equity instruments of associate (carried at cost)
7,500 (Previous year 7,500) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up in Pigeon
Appliances Private Limited (Refer note(i) below)

Total

The Company had invested a sum of Rs. 0.08 for 37.5% paid-up equity share capital of Pigeon Appliances Private Limited (PAPL). The
business operations of PAPL is controlled by the majority shareholders of PAPL. During the FY 2014-135, the Company had noted certain
irregularities in the business operations of PAPL and use of trademarks registered in the name of the Company, without the consent of the
Group. The Company had initiated legal action against PAPL for irregularities noted in the business operations and unauthorized use of

trademarks.

Other financial asset (non- current)

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019|March 31, 2018| April 01, 2017
(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)
Security deposits
Considered good 50.96 38.01 26.12
Considered doubtful 1.18 1.18 1.18
Less. Allowance for doubtful security deposits (1.18) (1.18) (1.18)
50.96 38.01 26.12
Derivatives designated as hedges
Cross currency interest rate swap - - 4.76
Total 50.96 38.01 30.88
Non-current tax asset (net)
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019{March 31, 2018| April 01, 2017
Advance income tax (net) 46.57 47.14 47.64
Total 46.57 47.14 47.64
Other non-current assets
Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

April 01, 2017

(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)
Capital advances

Considered good 4.32 7.24 9.48
Considered doubtful 2.38 2.60 3.02
Less: Allowance for doubtful advance (2.38) (2.60) (3.02)
4.32 7.24 9.48
Tax paid under protest
Considered good 7.58 7.50 9.21
Considered doubtful 354 3.54 -
Less: Allowance for doubtful balances (3.54) (3.54) -
7.58 7.50 9.21
Balance with government authorities
Considered good 3.91 18.19 3.06
Considered doubtful 11.81 11.81 19.31
Less: Allowance for doubtful balances (11.81) (11.81) (19.31)
3.91 18.19 3.06
Prepaid rent on discounting of security deposits 0.36 0.50 0.81
Prepaid expenses 1.81 1.19 -
Total 17.98 34.62 22.56
Inventories
(Lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value)
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019| March 31, 2018| April 01, 2017
Raw materials, components and packing materials 343.10 466.84 301.81
Raw material-in-transit 12.84 81.12 -
Work-in-progress 31.98 0.59 0.09
Finished goods (other than those acquired for trading) 246.83 157.70 156.22
Stock-in-trade (acquired for trading) 278.70 244.63 228.75
Goods-in-transit (acquired for trading) 60.69 100.50 39.40
Total 974.14 1,051.38 726.27

Refer note 19(i) for details of hypothecation,




Note

10(a)

10(b)

Note:
(1)

12

13

Stove Kraft Limited
(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amount in Rupees Millions except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Trade receivables

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018| April 01, 2017
Trade Receivables Considered good - Unsecured 896.56 795.52 592.84
Trade Receivables - Credit impaired 77.26 124 .36 94.58
973.82 919.88 687.42
Less: Allowance for Credit impaired (77.26) (124.36) (94.58)
Total 896.56 795.52 592.84
The average credit period on sale goods ranges from 60 to 120 days.
Refer note 19(1) for details of hypothecation.
Cash and cash equivalents
' Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018| April 01, 2017
Cash on hand 0.55 0.82 0.46
Balances with banks:

In current accounts 89.69 3.18 4.96
In fixed deposits 195.00 - -
Total 285.24 4.00 5.42

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents as above
: Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018] April 01, 2017
Balances with banks:
in earmarked accounts: balance held as margin money (Refer note (i) below) 29.55 33.81 31.25
Total 29.55 33.81 31.25

Balances in earmarked accounts represent margin money deposits for non-fund based limits with banks, which are available for use to

settle a liability for not more than 12 months from the Balance sheet date

Loans

Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, 2019|March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017

(Unsecured considered good)
Loans and advances to related parties (Refer note 40) - - 69.62
Advance to employees 4.52 BT 0.68
Total 4.52 337 70.30
Refer note 19(i) for details of hypothecation
Other financial assets (current)

Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

April 01, 2017

(Unsecured considered good)
Derivatives designated as hedges

Cross currency interest rate swap - 1.21 -
Insurance Claim Receivable 10.99 -
Interest accrued on deposit with banks 0.21 0.48 0.61
Total 11.20 1.69 0.61
Refer note 19(1) for details of hypothecation.
Other Current Assets
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019|March 31, 2018| April 01, 2017
(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)
Prepaid expenses 53.14 9.09 6.01
Advances to suppliers / service providers
Considered good 44.13 40.75 71.79
Considered doubtful 9.46 51.64 4525
Less: Allowance for doubtful advances (9.46) (51.64) (45.25)
44,13 40.75 71.79
Balance with government authorities 34,10 43.19 17.06
Total 131.37 93.03 94.86

Refer note 19(i) for details of hypothecation.




Note
14(a)
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(ii)

(iii)

Stove Kraft Limited

(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amount in Rupees Millions except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Equity share capital

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31,2019|March 31, 2018| April 01, 2017

Authorised

4,00,00,005 (As at March 31,2018 - 1.99,99,995 ; As at April 01, 2017 : 1,99,99,995) Equity 400.00 200.00 200.00

shares of Rs. 10/- each.

10 (As at March 31, 2018 : 10 ; As at Apnl 01,2017 : 10) Class A Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each -

[Rs. 100 (As at March 31, 2018 : Rs. 100 and as at April 01, 2017 Rs. 100)].
Total 400.00 200.00 200.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up capital

24,716,727 (As at March 31,2018 : 1,89,00,100 ;As at April 01,2017 : 1,89,00,100) Equity shares 247.17 189.00 189.00

of Rs. 10/- each,

10 (As at March 31,2018 : 10 ; As at April 01,2017 : 10) Class A Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each

[Rs. 100 (As at March 31,2018 : Rs. 100 and as at April 01, 2017 Rs. 100)]
Total 247.17 189.00 189.00

Reconciliation of the number of equity shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

Particulars Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each | Class A equity shares of Rs. 10/-
each
No. of Rs. No. of Rs.
Shares Shares
Equity shares of Rs., 10/- each
Opening balance as on 01 April 2017 18,900,100 189.00 10 -
Add: movement during the vear - - - -
Closing balance as at 31 March, 2018 18,900,100 189.00 10 -
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each
Opening balance as on 01 Apnl 2018 18,900,100 189.00 10 -
Add: Conversion of CCDs into equity shares (Refer note 16(v)) 5,816,627 58.17 - -
Closing balance as at 31 March, 2019 24,716,727 247.17 10 -

Terms/rights attached to:
Equity share holders:

The holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to
receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution to all other parties concerned. The distribution will be in proportion to number of

equity shares held by the shareholders
Class A equity share holders:

Class A equity shares are held by SCI Growth Investments II ('Sequoia’). The voting rights of Sequoia in relation to the Class A equity shares at every
resolution placed before the shareholders of the Company at any General Meetings of the Company shall be equal to 43.36%. In the event the Board
ﬂecl_arcs dividend, then the dividend payable on the outstanding Compulsory Convertible Debentures (CCD's) (which have not been converted) shall be
equal to the dividend declared and calculated based on the number of Equity Shares to be issued to Sequoia on conversion of the CCD

Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Particulars As at As at As at
. March 31,2019{March 31, 2018] April 01, 2017

Equity share of Rs. 10/- each
Rajendra J Gandhi

No of shares 18,184,619 18,184,622 18,184,622

% of holding 73.57% 96.21% 96.21%
SCI Growth Investments I1
No. of shares 4.961,605 - -
% of holding 20.07% -
Sequoia Capital India Growth Investment Holdings 1
No. of shares 1,311,200 -
% of holding 5.30%) -




Stove Kraft Limited

(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amount in Rupees Millions except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Note

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018| April 01, 2017
Class A equity share of Rs. 10/- each
SCI Growth Investments Holdings I
No of shares 5 3 &)
% of holding 50% 50% 50%
SCI Growth Investments II
No of shares 5 3 5
% of holding 50%| 50% 50%
14(b) Other Equity
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018| April 01,2017
Cash flow hedging reserve - (0.05) (1.29)
Retained earnings (1,967.55) (1,975.51) (1,849.82)
Securities Premium 1,094.37
Total (873.18) (1,975.56) (1,851.11)
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018| April 01,2017
A) Cash flow hedging reserve
Opening balance (0.05) (1.29) (2.49)
Add : (Loss) / Profit on hedging instruments 0.05 1.24 1.20
Closing balance (a) - (0.05) (1.29)
B) Retained earnings
Opening balance (1,975.51) (1,849.82) (1,658.89)
Add; Profit / (Loss) for the year 6.32 (127.44) (192.25)
Add : Remeasurement gain recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 1.64 1.75 1.32
Closing balance (b) (1,967.55) (1,975.51) (1,849.82)
C) Securities Premium
Opening balance - - -
Add/(Less) : Securities Premium account on conversion of CCDs to Equity 1,094.37 - -
Closing balance (¢) 1,094.37 - -
Total (a+b+c) (873.18) (1,975.56) (1,851.11)

(i) Cash flow hedging reserve

The cash flow hédging reserve represents the cumulative effective portion of gains or losses arising on changes in fair value of designated portion of

hedging instruments entered into for cash flow hedges

(ii) Retained Earnings

Retained carnings are the profits that the Group has earned till date, less any transfers to other reserves and other distributions paid to its equity

shareholders,

(iii) Securities premium reserve
Securities premium 1s used to record the premium received on issue of shares.

15 Non-controlling interests

Particulars Non-
Controlling
interest

Balance as at 01 April, 2017 2.54
Changes in non-controlling interest for the year ended March 31, 2018

Loss for the year (0.18)
Minority interest adjusted during the year (0.22)
Balance as at 31 March 2018 2.14
Changes in non-controlling interest for the year ended March 31, 2019

Profit / (Loss) for the year 0.03
Balance as at 31 March 2019 2.17
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Note
16

(@)

(i)

(i1i)

(iv)

)

Stove Kraft Limited

(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amount in Rupees Millions except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Borrowings (non-current)

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019|March 31, 2018 April 01,2017

Secured ( at amortized cost)

Term loan from bank (Refer note (1) (i) and (iii)) 24790 105.09 1621
Vehicle Loan (Refer note (iv)) 4.89 7.96 5.06
Unsecured ( at fair value through profit and loss )

6,089,554 (As at March 31,2018 : 12,661,812 and as at April 01,2017 : 12,661,812) Compulsory 1,847.47 3,000.00 2,846.20

Convertible Debentures (CCD) of Rs. 10/- each (Refer note (v) below)

Total 2,100.26 3,113.05 2,.867.47

The Group has borrowed USD 4 long-term loan from a bank, for the purpose of expansion and modernization. Rate of interest is 3 months London
interbank offered rate (LIBOR) - 3.5% and repayable in 16 equal quarterly instalments.

Secunty: First exclusive equitable mortgage of the immovable property (both present and future) of the Group and hypothecation of the movable property
(both present and future) of the Group and personal guarantee of Mr. Rajendra J Gandhi (Managing Director) and Mrs. Sunitha Gandhi.

The Group has entered into 'Cross-Currency Rate Swap' arrangement (Swap arrangement) for payment of interest and repayment of above mentioned long-
term loan. As per the Swap arrangement, the Group 1s paying interest at fixed rate and receiving interest at floating rate. The terms of Swap arrangement is
from June 27,2013 to 27 June 2018. The loan is fully repaid during the FY 2018-19

The Group had taken the term loan from South Indian Bank (SIB) of Rs. 125 during the FY 2017-18. Rate of interest is 12 month Marginal Cost of fund
based Lending rate (MCLR) + 2% spread which is subject to yearly reset which is repayable in 60 equal instalments. Repayment of term loan obtained
from SIB starts from July 2018.

Security: Equitable mortgage of vacant industrial land of the company located at Harohalli, Ramanagara District and personal guarantee of Mr. Rajendra
Gandhi, Mrs. Sunita Gandhi and Ms. Neha Gandhi.

The Group had taken the working capital term loan from IDFC First Bank (IDFC) of Rs. 250 during the FY 2018-19. Rate of interest is 12 month
marginal cost of fund based lending rate (MCLR) + 2.25% spread which is subject to yearly reset which is repayable in 36 equal instalments, Repayment
of term loan obtained from IDFC starts from April 2019.

Security: Equitable mortgage of vacant industrial land of the company located at Harchalli, Ramanagara District and personal guarantee of Mr. Rajendra
Gandhi, Mrs. Sunitha Gandhi and Ms. Neha Gandhi.

The Group has borrowed Rs.10 towards vehicle loan from BMW Financial Services. Rate of interest is 9.11% per annum which is repayable in 36 equal
monthly instalmepts.
Security: Exclusive hypothecation on the vehicle

The Group had borrowed Rs.8 towards vehicle loan from BMW Financial Services. Rate of interest is 8.51% per annum which is repayable in 60 equal
monthly instalments.
Security: exclusive hypothecation on the vehicle.

6,089,554 (As at March 31,2018 : 12,661,812 and as at April 1,2017 : 12,661,812) Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCD) of Rs. 10/- each: The
following are the terms of the 1ssue:

Interest: The holders of the Series B CCD shall be entitled to receive interest at a coupon rate of 0.0000001% per annum_

Dividends rights: Until conversion of all Series B CCD into Equity Shares, in the event the Board declares dividend, then such additional interest shall be
payable on the outstanding Series B CCD (which have not been converted) which shall be equal to the dividend declared and calculated based on the
number of Equity Shares to be issued to the holders of Series B CCD on conversion of the outstanding Series B CCD

Conversion: In accordance with the terms and conditions agreed with holders of Series B CCD, each Series B CCD is either (a) compulsorily convertible
into equity shares of the Company , at any time after the closing date into such number of fully paid shares as is determined by the conversion ratio and at
a price defined in the Investment Agreement or (b) compulsorily convert into equity shares of the Company upon the earlier of the proposed filing of the
draft red herring prospectus in connection with the Qualified IPO by the Company or the date as mentioned in the Investment Agreement.

Buy back: The holder of the instrument has right to sell back the CCDs to Company after four years from the closing dates.
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Stove Kraft Limited

(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amount in Rupees Millions except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Note
Exit to CCD holders: At any time after the expiry of the fourth anniversary from the closing date, the Company, the Promoters and the Investors shall
cause a transaction that would give liquidity to CCD holders investment in the Company (‘Exit Option®). At any time after the expiry of the fourth
anniversary from the closing date the Company, the Promoters and the CCD holders shall jointly determine to provide one or more of the below
mentioned Exit Options:

(a) The Company shall conduct the Qualified IPO; or

(b) The Company shall buy back, some or all outstanding CCD's; or

(c) The holders CCD's shall be entitled to transfer the CCD's to a third party.

During the current year 5,489,147 Series A CCDs were converted into 4,733,516 equity shares (Exchange Ratio - 1 CCD being converted into 0.86 equity
shares) and 1,083,111 Series B CCDs were converted into 1,083,111 equity shares (Exchange Ratio - | CCD being converted into | equity shares)

T'he table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.

Non-cash changes

Particulars As at Financing | Acquisition Foreign Fair value As at
April 01, | Cash Flow exchange change/others |March 31, 2018
2017 movement

{a)Non Current Borrowings

Borrowings from bank 81.04 65.00 - (4.79) - 14125

Borrowings from other financial institution 8.27 3.44 - - - K71

Compulsorily convertible debentures(CCD) 2,846.20 - - - 153.80 3,000.00

(b)Current Borrowings 781.19 26.76 - 1.63 - 809.58

Total Borrowings 3,716.70 95.20 - (3.16) 153.80 3,962.54

Non-cash changes

Particulars As at Financing | Acquisition Foreign Fair value As at
March 31, | Cash Flow exchange change/others |March 31, 2019
2018 movement

(a)Non Current Borrowings

Borrowings from bank 141.25 214.99 - - 356.24
Borrowings from other financial institution 11.71 (3.75) - - - 1.96
Compulsorily convertible debentures(CCD) 3,000.00 - (1,152.53) - 1,847 47
(b)Current Borrowings 809.58 191.87 - (2.01) - 999.44
Total Borrowings 3,962.54 403.11 (1,152.53) (2.01) - 3,211.11

17 Other financial liabilities (non-current)

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019| March 31, 2018| April 01, 2017

" |Security deposits received 96.01 148.27 169.04
Total 96.01 148.27 169.04

18  Provisions (non-current)

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018| April 01,2017

Provision for employee benefits:

Compensated absence 2.53 - -

Gratuity (Refer note 35) . 35.30 30.50 2701
Provision for warranties (Refer note (i) below) 8.29 3.64 369
Total 46.12 34.14 30.70

(i) The Group has made provision for various contractual obligations based on its assessment of the amount it estimates to incur to meet such obligations
against the sales made by the Group in the current and previous year, the details of which are given below:

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018| April 01,2017

Warranty Provision

Opening balance 10.84 7.62 6.57
Additions during the year 1538 9.06 5.56
Unwinding of interest on discounting of provision 071 045 0.46
Reversed / utilisation during the year (10.74) (6.29) (4.97)
Closing balance 16.19 10.84 7.62
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Stove Kraft Limited

(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amount in Rupees Millions except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Borrowings (current)

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018| April 01, 2017
Secured loans repayable on demand from banks ( at amortized cost )
From banks (Refer note (i) below) 885.72 809.58 781.19
From financial institutions (Refer note (i1) below) 113.72 - -
Total 999.44 809.58 781.19

Secured loans repayable on demand from banks are in the nature of working capital loans which are secured by way of hypothecation of inventory,
receivables and other current assets, charge over property, plant and equipment of the Group along with equitable mortgage of immovable properties.
Loans repayable on demand from banks is also secured by personal guarantee of Mr. Rajendra Gandhi, Mrs, Sunita Gandhi and Ms. Neha Gandhi.

Security: Exclusive charge on the trade receivables which is discounted by the financial institution and also secured by personal guarantee of Mr. Rajendra

Gandhi and Mrs. Sunita Gandhi.

Trade payables
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 |March 31, 2018| April 01,2017
Other than Acceptances
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 59.87 40.28 8.09
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,281.12 141132 1,074 31
Total 1,340.99 1,451.60 1,082.40
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31,2019|March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
Trade payables towards materials 857.26 1,042 .85 FIh2T
Trade payables towards services 198.93 188.70 105.70
Trade payables towards accruals 284.79 220.05 199.43
Total 1,340.99 1,451.60 1,082.40
a) Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled between 60 to 150 days
b) The Group's exposure to currency and liquidity risk related to trade payable is disclosed in Note 34.
Other financial liabilities (current)
Particulars As at As at As at

March 31,2019

March 31,2018

April 01, 2017

Current maturities of non-current borrowings

Term loan from,banks (Refer note 16(i) (i) and (iii)) 108.34 3501 64.84

. Vehicle Loan (Refer note 16(iv)) 3.07 490 320
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 6.14 1.99 1.04
Security deposits received 7026 39.13 -
Derivative liabilities 277 - 1.34
Other payables:

Payable on purchase of property, plant and equipment 40.35 12.00 13.64

Interest Payable on security deposits 6.73 17.18 13.41
Total 237.66 110.21 97.47
Provisions (current)

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019|March 31, 2018| April 01, 2017

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity ( Refer note 35 ) 3.88 4.07 1.44
Compensated absence 324 4.80 4.67
Provision - others:
For warranty (Refer note 18(i)) 790 7.20 393
Provision for indirect taxes - - 67.84
Total 15.02 16.07 77.88

{
)

|—
o

ACCDUNTAH?;--;

A o)

%‘wﬂzgg'y
LHEALY

¢l
/

GALY

/ i?‘s,’
CHARTERED ,Tg

pangalore
gg2 112. /%
e

..




Note
23

24

Stove Kraft Limited

(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amount in Rupees Millions except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Other current liabilities
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31,2019|March 31,2018| April 01,2017
Statutory remittances 18,78 1472 40.19
Advance received from customers 19.02 906 23.10
Deferred revenue 16.12 28.46 14.80
Total 53.92 52.24 78.09
Current tax liabilities (net)
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31,2019\ March 31, 2018] April 01, 2017
Provision for income tax (net) 5.11 0.14 6.10
Total 5.11 0.14 6.10
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Stove Kraft Limited

(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amount in Rupees Millions except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Revenue from operations

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

Sale of preducts (including excise duty - Refer note (i) below) 6,349 96 5,252.46
Other operating revenue:
Sale of scrap 24.29 26.83
Duty drawback 3513 6.98
Mould development charges - 3.25
Total 6,409.38 5,289.52

Sale of products

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Manufactured 4,341.22 3,597.73
Traded 2,008.74 1,654.73
Total 6,349.96 5,252.46

Refer Note 36 for disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers by geography.

Performance obligations and remaining performance obligations:

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognized as at the
end of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Group expects to recognize these amounts in revenue. Applying the
practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Group has not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for

contracts that have original expected duration of one year or less

Other income

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(i)Recurring items
Interest income (Refer note (i) below) 197 3.67
Miscellaneous income 2.14 6.07
Gain on financial instruments designated at FVTPL - 1.33
Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translation - 0.89
(ii)Non-recurring items
Government grant - 2.52
Profit on sale of property, plant & equipments 0.13 -
Liability no more required written back 12.36 41.85
Total 16.60 56.33
Note (i) - Interest income comprises:
Particiilais For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Interest from banks on deposits 166 1.80
Interest income on financial assets designated at amortized cost 0.17 023
Interest on trade receivables 0.14 1.64
Total 1.97 3.67

Cost of materials consumed

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Opening stock 54796 301.81
Add: Purchases 3,015.36 2,657.34
3,563.32 2,959.15
Less: Closing stock (387.92) (547.96)
Total 3,175.40 2.411.19
Purchase of stock-in-trade
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Purchase of traded goods 1,326.00 1,203.26
Total 1,326.00 1,203.26
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(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amount in Rupees Millions except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

Inventories at the end of the year:

Finished goods 246.83 157.70
Work-in-progress 3198 0.59
Stock-in-trade 339.39 345,13
618.20 503.42
Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Finished goods 157.70 156.22
Work-in-progress 0.59 0.09
Stock-in-trade 345.13 268.15
503.42 424.46
(Increase)/decrease (114.78) (78.96
Employee benefits expenses
: Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Salaries and wages 613.53 523,48
Contributions to provident fund (Refer note 35) 2767 27.41
Gratuity expense (Refer note 35) 11.22 10.80
Staff welfare expenses 45.53 29.18
Total 697.95 590.87
Finance costs
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Interest expense on:
Borrowings 128.02 126.68
Interest paid to others 25.96 26.21
Unwinding of interest on provisions 0.71 0.45
Other borrowing cost:
Interest on statutory dues 0.37 -
Bank charges and other processing charges 2412 16.01
Total 179.18 169.35
Depreciation and amortization expenses -
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
J March 31, 2019 Mareh 31, 2018
Depreciation 105.57 99.33
Amortization 18.84 20.36
Total 124.41 119.69
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(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amount in Rupees Millions except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Other expenses

Particilars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Job work charges 71.06 58.07
Power and fuel 56.92 5423
Rent including lease rentals (refer note 37) 3.46 14.35
Repairs and maintenance

Buildings 14.20 13.72

Plant and machinery 31.65 20.54

Others 290 291
Insurance 3.91 1.80
Rates and taxes 9.37 11.43
Communication 7.03 8.61
Travelling and conveyance 78.74 69.96
Printing and stationery 1.85 1.63
Freight and forwarding 240.16 195.66
Sales commission 134 .44 114.85
Business Promotion and Advertisement Expenses 227.01 161.73
Legal and professional fees 45.20 34.83
Payment to auditors comprises (excluding service tax/Goods and Services Tax)
- For statutory audit 2.37 2.47
- Others 0.06 -
- OQut-of-pocket expense 0.65 0.42
Net loss on foreign currency transactions and translation 30.98
Provision for doubtful trade and other receivables, loans and advances (net) and balance 22.07 59.65
written off
Provision for warranty (Refer note 18(i)) 15.38 9.06
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment - 1.02
Royalty 5.41 394
Fair Value changes on derivative instruments 4.03
Loss on financial liability designated at FVTPL - 153.80
Miscellaneous expenses ~17.74 15.43
Total 1,026.59 1,010.11
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(Amount in Rupees Millions except for share data or as otherwise stated)
Note

34 Financial Instruments

34,1 Capital management
The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt and total equity of the Group consists of net debt (borrowings as detailed in
notes 16 and 19 and current maturities of non-current borrowings as detailed in note 21, offset by cash and bank balances) and total
equity.

The Group reviews the capital structure on a semi-annual basis to ensure that it in compliance with the required covenants

Gearing ratio
The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period was as follows.

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019|March 31, 2018| April 01, 2017
Debt (1) 321111 3,962 .54 3,716.70
Less: Cash and bank balances (314.79) (37.81) (36.67)
Net Debt (A) 2,896.32 3,924.73 3,680.03
Total Equity (B) (626.01) (1,786.56) (1,662.11
Net debt to equity ratio (A/B) (Refer note (ii) below) - - -

(i) Debt is defined as non-current borrowings, current maturities of non-current borrowings and current borrowings. (borrowings as
detailed in notes 16 and 19 and current maturities of non-current borrowings as detailed in note 21)

(ii) The net debt to equity ratio is not computed as the Group has negative equity as at the end of respective reporting period.

Categories of financial instruments
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019|March 31, 2018| April 01, 2017

Financial assets
Measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income(FVTOCI)

Derivatives designated in a cash flow hedge = 1.21 476
Measured at amortised cost

Trade receivables 896.56 © 79552 592 .84

Cash and bank balances 314.79 37.81 36.67

Loans 452 337 70.30

Other financial assets 62.16 38.49 2673

Financial liabilities
Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Borrowings 1,847.47 3,000.00 2,846.20

Derivatives financial liability 297 - 1.34
Measured at amortised cost

Borrowings ( including current maturities of non current borrowings) 1,363 .64 962.54 870.50

Trade Payables 1,340.99 1,451.60 1,082.40

Other financial liabilities 219.49 218.57 197.13

34.2 Fair value hierarchy
The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either observable or
unobservable and consist of the following three levels:
Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable nputs).

Fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.
Fair Valuation Techniques and Inputs used
Particulars . Fair value Basis of Fair value
hierarchy valuation As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018| April 01, 2017

Financial assets

Cross currency interest rate swaps Level - 2 Note 2 - 121 476
Financial liabilities
Borrowings Level - 3 Note 3 1,847.47 3,000.00 2,846.20

Derivative Instruments Level - 2 Note | 2.77 -
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The fair value of forward foreign contracts are determined using forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date.
Future cash flows are estimated based on forward interest rates (from observable yield curves at the end of the reporting period) and
contract interest rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk of various counterparties.

The fair value is determined at a present value which discounts the potential future cash flows.

The management considers that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in these financial statements
at amortised cost approximate their fair values.

Sensitivity of Unobservable inputs used in Level 3 Fair value measurements
The value of series A and series B CCDs is not impacted as both are carried at their maximum value.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019{March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017

Opening balance 3,000.00 2.846.20 2,641 .00
Conversion of Compulsory Convertible Debentures (CCD) to equity shares (1,152.53) = S
during the year
(Gains) or losses:

in Consolidated Statement of profit and loss* - 153.80 205.20
Closing balance 1,847.47 3,000.00 2,846.20

*The above said loss on fair valuation of CCD 1s recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Financial risk management objectives

The Group's risk management is carried out by Treasury department under policies laid down by the management. The Group's
activities expose it to market risk (which includes currency risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
Treasury department monitors the risk exposures on a periodical basis and reports to the Board of directors on the risks that it monitors
and policies implemented to mitigate risk exposures.

The Group seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by using derivative financial instruments to hedge risk exposures. The use of
financial derivatives is governed by the Group's policies approved by the board of directors, which provide written principles on
foreign exchange tasks, interest rate risk, credit risk, the use of financial derivatives and non-derivative financial instruments. The
Group does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

Foreign currency risk management
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk due to:
a) debt availed in foreign currency
b) exposure arising from transactions relating to purchase of goods including capital goods, revenues, expenses, etc., to be settled in
foreign currencies. g
Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters utilising forward foreign exchange contracts.

Forward foreign exchange contracts
[t is the policy of the Group to enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to cover the risk associated with trade receivables and
trade payables.

The following table details the forward foreign currency contracts outstanding at the end of the reporting period:

Contracts not designated in cashflow hedges

Particular Currency As at As at As at
March 31, 2019|March 31, 2018| 01 April, 2017
Trade payables hedged with forward contracts with maturity less | USD 3.03 - 1.21
than 120 days INR 209.77 - 78.43

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary liabilities (Trade payables) and assets (Trade
receivables) at the end of the reporting period are as follows: ‘

Particulars : Currency As at As at As at
March 31, 2019| March 31, 2018| 01 April, 2017
Payable (including current borrowings) usD 207.44 333.85 209.65
EURO - - 0.05
RMB 3.93 - -
Trade receivable usD 42.79 38.84 42.67
EURO - - 1.22
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Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The Group is mainly exposed to the currency USD

Financial instruments affected by changes in foreign exchange rates include trade receivables, trade payables and current borrowings.
The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in INR against the USD. 5% is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The impact on account of 5% appreciation/depreciation in exchange rate of
USD against INR is given below:

Increase/(decrease) in equity

Particulars For the year  (For the year

ended March [ended March
Appreciation of USD (8.43) (14.75)
Depreciation of USD 8.43 14.75

The impact on equity has been arrived at by applying the effects of appreciation / deprecation effects of currency on the net position
(Assets in foreign currency - Liabilities in foreign currency) in the respective currencies.

For the purposes of the above table, it 1s assumed that the carrying value of the financial assets and habilitics as at the end of the
respective financial years remains constant thereafter. The exchange rate considered for the sensitivity analysis is the exchange rate
prevalent as at each year end.

The sensitivity analysis might not be representative of inherent foreign exchange risk due to the fact that the foreign exposure at the
end of the reporting period might not reflect the exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group has taken a loan in foreign currency at variable interest rate, interest being index linked, that is their cost is linked to
changes in the London inter-bank offer rate (LIBOR). The Group has entered into a cross currency interest swap to hedge the variable
interest risk and foreign currency risk and converted it into a fixed INR interest loan and thereby the Group interest rate is fixed and
not subject to any further risks.

The Group has also taken an INR loan at variable interest rate, interest being index linked, that is their cost is linked to changes in the
Marginal Cost of fund based lending rate (MCLR).

The Group is not subject to any other material interest rate risks.

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the group's interest-bearing financial instrument is as follows:

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019{March 31, 2018| 01 April, 2017
Fixed-rate instruments
Financial assets
Balance held as margin money 29,35 3381 F1:25
Fixed Deposit held as cash & cash equivalent 195.00 - -
Financial Liability
Borrowings from bank and other financial institution 7.96 2796 89.31
Security deposit received 166.27 187.40 169.04
) 398.78 249.17 289.60
Variable-rate instruments
Financial liabilities
Borrowings from bank and other financial institution 1355.68 93458 781.19
1355.68 934.58 781.19

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
A change of 100 basis points in interest rate at the reporting date would have
below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.

increased/ (decreased) equity by the amount shown

Increase/(decrease) in equity

Particulars For the year For the year
ended March | ended March
31,2019 31,2018
Increase of 100 bps on variable rate instruments (7.89) (9.50)
Decrease of 100 bps on variable rate instruments 7.89 9.50
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Note
Cash flow hedges
The following table detail the nominal amounts and remaining terms of interest rate swap contracts outstanding at the end of the
reporting period.

Outstanding receive floating pay fixed contracts Contracted Nominal Fair value
fixed interest amounts assets /

rate (In Rs.) (liabilities)
(In Rs.)

As at March 31, 2019
Less than | year - - -
1 to 2 years - - =
2 t0 5 years - - -
Total - - -
As at March 31, 2018 )
Less than 1 year 12.25% 15.00 121
1to 2 years | : - - 2
2 to 5 years - -
Total " - 15.00 1.21
As at April 1,2017
Less than 1 year - - -

1 to 2 years 12.25% 75.00 4.76
2 to 5 years - - -
Total - 75.00 4.76

The interest rate swaps settle on a quarterly basis. The floating rate on the interest rate swaps 1s the local interbank rate in the currency
of the loan. The Group will settle the difference between the fixed and floating interest rate on a net basis.

The line-item in the balance sheet that includes the above instrument is "Other financial assets',

34.5 Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. The
Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from
defaults. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of
accounts receivable. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the fact that the customer base is large and unrelated. The Group
does not hold any collaterals to cover its risk associated with trade receivables.

Credit risk also arises from cash and cash equivalents, financial instruments and deposits with banks and financial institutions. The
credit risk on derivative financial instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Reconciliation of expected credit loss - Trade receivables

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019|March 31, 2018| 01 April, 2017
Opening Provision - 124,36 9458 8524
Change in Provision (47.10) 29.78 9.34
Closing Provision 77.26 124.36 94.58
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019|March 31, 2018 01 April, 2017
Outstanding for more than 6 months 117.05 141.18 106.56
Others 779.51 654 34 486.28
Total 896.56 795.52 592.84

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group could be unable to meet its short term financial demands.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the management, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management of the Group's short-term, medium-term and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve
borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual short term and long term cash flows, and by matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
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Note
Liquidity analysis for non derivative financial liabilities
The following table details the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment
periods. The table have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group is required to pay. The table include both interest and principal cash flows. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest
date on which the Group would be required to pay.

As at 31 March, 2019

Financial Liabilities Due within (years) Total Carrying
<1 year 1-3 years >3 years amount
Borrowings 2,958.32 220.12 32.67 3,211.11 3,211.11
Trade payables 1,340.99 - - 1,340.99 1,340.99
Other Financial Liabilities 123.48 96.01 - 219.49 219.49
Total 4,422.79 316.13 32.67 4,771.59 4,771.59

The interest rate for borrowings with variable interest rate is in the range of 10.5 % to 12.5%. The interest rate for borrowings with
fixed interest rate is 12.25%. Interest rate for security deposit classified as other financial liabilities is 9%.

As at 31 March, 2018

Financial Liabilities Due within (years) Total Carrying
< 1 year 1-3 years >3 years amount
Borrowings 3,850.32 54.73 5742 3,962.47 3,962.54
Trade payables 1,451.60 1,451.60 1.451.60
Other Financial Liabilities 70.30 146.72 155 218.57 218.57
Total 5,372.22 201.45 58.97 5,632.64 5,632.71

The interest rate for borrowings with variable interest rate is in the range of 11 % to 15.15%. The interest rate for borrowings with
fixed interest rate is 12.25%. Interest rate for security deposit classified as other financial liabilities is 9%o.

As at 01 April, 2017

Financial Liabilities Due within (vears) Total Carrying
<1 year 1-3 years >3 years amount
Trade Payables 3,690.59 20.06 - 3.710.65 3,716.70
Compulsory Convertible Debentures 1,082 40 - - 1,082.40 1,082.40
Other financial liabilities 28.09 167.49 1285 197.13 197.13
Total 4,801.08 187.55 1.55 4,990.18 4,996.23

The interest rate for borrowings with variable interest rate is in the range of 12 % to 15.75 %. The interest rate for borrowings with
fixed interest rate is 12.25%. Interest rate for security deposit classified as other financial liabilities is 9%.

34.6 Financing Facilities
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019| March 31, 2018] 01 April, 2017

Secured term loar facilities
- amount used 35624 141.20 81.05
- amount unused - - -

Secured cash credit facility
- amount used i 999 .44 809.58 781.19
- amount unused ' 149.92 - 68.81

Secured non-fund based bank facilities
- amount used : 122.58 195.80 256.40
- amount unused 2742 48.62 43.60
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Employee Benefit

Defined contribution plans :

The Group makes Provident fund and Employees State Insurance Scheme which are defined contribution plans, for qualifying
employees. Under the said schemes, the Group is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits.
The contributions payable to these plans by the Group are at rates specified in the rules of the scheme. The Group recognises the amount
paid / payable to such funds in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. The contributions made by the Group towards these
schemes are as follows:

Particulars For the year For the year
ended March 31, | ended March 31,
2019 2018
Employer’s contribution to Provident fund 27.67 27.41
Employee State Insurance Scheme 10.65 779

Defined benefit plans
The Group offers gratuity, a defined employee benefit scheme to its employees. Following are the risks associated with the plan:

A. Actuarial Risk:

It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following reasons:

Salary Growth: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary escalation will result in to an increase in Obligation at a rate that is
higher than expected.

Variability in mortality rates: [f actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality rate assumption than the Gratuity benefits will
be paid earlier than expected. Since there 1s no condition of vesting on the death benefit . the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an
actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and discount rate.

Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratuity
benefits will be paid earlier than expected. The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation date.

B. Liquidity Risk:
Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits. If some of such
employees resign/retire from the Group there can be strain on the cash flows.

C. Market Risk:

Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. One actuarial
assumption that has a material effect is the discount rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount
rate leads to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption depends on the yields on the
corporate/government bonds and hence the valuation of liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date.

D. Legislative Risk:

Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in the legislation/regulation. The
government may amend the Payment of Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will
directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will have to be recognized immediately in the year
when any such amendment is effective.

No other post-retirement benefits are 'providcd to these employees
The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the
projected unit credit method.
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Following tables sets out the un-funded status of defined benefit plan and amount recognised in Consolidated Financial Statement.
1 Assumptions
Particulars For the year For the year
ended March 31, | ended March 31,
2019 2018
Discount Rate 731% 731%
Salary Escalation 6.00% 10.00%
Altrition rate 25.00% 18.00%
2 Change in present value of obligation
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018 | April 01,2017
Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning of year 34.57 28.45 2098
[nterest Cost 238 1.97 1.52
Past service cost 8.84 0.84 -
Current Service Cost - 7.99 762
Benefits paid (4.97) (2.93) (0.35
Actuarial (gain)/loss of obligations (1.64) (1.75) (1.32)
Present Value of Obligation as at the end of the year 39.18 34.57 28.45
3 Fair value of plan assets
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31,2018 | April 01, 2017
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year - - -
Expected return of plan assets = = =
Contributions - - -
Benefit Paid o = _
Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets - x =
Fair value of plan assets at end of year = & 2
4 Amounts to be recognized in consolidated balance sheet
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31,2018 | April 01,2017
Present Value of Obligations as at the end of year 39.18 34.57 28.45
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year - s :
Funded status (39.18) (3457 (28.45)
Net balance sheet liability recognized at the end of year (39.18) (34.57) (28.45)
Current Portion 3.88 4.07 1.44
Non-Current Portion 35.30 30.50 27.01
5

Expenses Recognized in consolidated statement of profit and loss

Particulars For the year For the year
ended March 31, | ended March 31,
2019 2018
Current Service Cost 8.84 7.99
Interest Cost 238 1.97
Past service cost - 0.84
Expenses recognized in statement of profit and loss 11.22 10.80
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(Amount in Rupees Millions except for share data or as otherwise stated)

6 Components of defined benefit costs recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars For the year For the year
ended March 31, | ended March 31,
2019 2018
Actuarial gains arising from changes in demographic assumptions 2.36 (3.36)
Actuarial losses arising from changes in financial assumptions (10.51) 2.52
Actuarial gains arising from experience adjustments 6.51 (0.9
Actuarial gains in Other Comprehensive Income (1.64) (1.75)
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31,2018 | April 01, 2017
Effect on DBO due to 100 bps increase in discount rate 37.73 33.06 2552
Effect on DBO due to 100 bps increase in discount rate 42.50 36.24 31.94
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31,2018 | April 01, 2017
Effect on DBO due to 100 bps increase in salary escalation rate 42.26 35.96 31.72
Effect on DBO due to 100 bps increase in salary escalation rate 37.91 33.28 25.65
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018 | April 01,2017
Effect on DBO due to 100 bps increase in attrition rate 39.82 34.27 28.19
Effect on DBO due to 100 bps increase in attrition rate 40.15 34.89 28.73

T'he sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely
that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using
the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit

obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years. There has been no

change in the process used by the Group to manage its risks from prior periods

7 Expected future cash outflows (discounted) towards the plan are as follows:

o
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Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018 | April 01, 2017
Year (1) 495 4.07 136
Year (2) 4.06 311 0.93
Year (3) 3.07 2.55 0.92
Year (4) 461 2.03 0.89
Year (5) 2.32 236 0.79
Years 6 to 10 13.95 5.08 5.28
2
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(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amount in Rupees Millions except for share data or as otherwise stated)

36 Segment reporting
Information reported to Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) for the purpose of segment performance focuses on manufacturing and

trading of kitchen and home appliances.

Revenue from major products and services:

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from its major products

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

a) Manufactured product sales

Kitchen Appliances 4,311.22 3,593.30

Home Appliances 30.00 4.43
Total (a) 4,341.22 3,597.73
b) Traded product sales

Kitchen Appliances 1,478.37 1,163.42

Home Appliances 530.37 49131
Total (b) 2,008.74 1,654.73
Gross Total (a+h) 6,349.96 5,252.46

Geographical information:
The Group predominantly operates in India.

. Revenue earned with in India and outside India are as follows:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

India 5,794.26 4,958.00

Others 55570 294 .46

Total 6,349.96 5,252.46

. Non-current assets* earned with in India and outside India are as follows:
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

India 1,840.58 1,889.57

Qthers - -

Total 1,840.58 1,889.57

*Non-current assets exclude financial assets and non-current tax assets

Revenue from major customers

Revenue from one ¢ustomer of the Group is 11.58% of Group's total revenue (As at March 31, 2018 - 7.29%) which is individually more

than.10 percent of the Group's total revenue.

37 Leases
The Group has entered into operating lease arrangements for office premises and showrooms, which are cancellable at the option of the
either party after giving prior notice. Lease payment recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss against such operating lease

arrangements are as follows:

Particulars For the year ended|For the year ended
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Rent iricluding lease rentals 3.46 14.35
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Note

38 Earnings per share

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

Basic

Net Profit / (loss) after tax attributable to the equity shareholders (Rs. in Million) (A) 6.32 (127.44)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (B) 21,927,944 18,900.110

Face value per share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00

Basic earning per shares (A/B) (Rs.) 0.29 (6.74)
Diluted

Net profit/(loss) after tax attributable to the equity shareholders (Rs in Million) (C) 6.32 (127.44)
Weighted average no. of equity shares outstanding” (D) 21,927,944 18,900,110

Face value per share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00

Diluted earnings per share (C/D) (Rs.) 0.29 (6.74)

#The conversion of CCDs into equity shares is contingent on various factors and since there exist uncertainty over conversion of CCDs into

equity shares, these are not considered in the computation of diluted earnings per share.

39 Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23.

March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
(1) the principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining unpaid 5346 35.90
to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year;
(1) interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year 0.94 0.24
(111) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, along with the amounts of the - -
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year,
(iv) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which 548 351
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under this Act;
(v) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and 6.42 4.63
(v1) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until 1.14 2.75

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information

collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.
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Related party transactions
A. List of related parties :

SL
No.

Name of the related party

Nature of relationship

Ms. Neha Gandhi

Mr.

1 |Key managerial personnel (KMP):
Mr. Rajendra J, Gandhi

Mrs. Shubha Rao Mayya (From 30 August 2018)

Lakshmikant Gupta (From 11 May 2018)

Mr. Rajiv Mehta Nitinbhai (From 11 May 2018)

Mr. Bharath Singh (From 21 September 2018)

Mr. Vivek Mishra (upto 30 April 2018)

Ms. Rehana A. Rajan (From 11th May 2018 to 26th July 2018)
Mr. Shashidhar SK (From 27 July 2018)

Mr. Radhakrishnan (From 19 January 2018 to 6 April 2018)
Mr. Shashidhar SK (From 02 July 2018)

Managing Director (MD)
Relative of MD and Director
Director

Director

Director

Nominee Director
Company Secretary
Company Secretary
Company Secretary
Chief Financial Officer
Chief Financial Officer

2 |Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by KMP or their
Shinag Allied Enterprises Private Limited (SAEPL)

Pigeon Appliances Private Limited (PAPL)

MD's brother's wife is a Director

Company is shareholder and MD is director

3 |Relative of KMP

Mrs. Sunitha Gandhi

Relative of MD

B. Transactions with related partics

Note: Related parties mentioned above is as identified by the Company relied upon by the auditors.

Particulars

For the year
ended
March 31, 2019

For the year
ended
March 31, 2018

Revenue from operations

SAEPL - 722
Purchases
SAEPL 0.14 6.22
Sales Return
SAEPL 0.37 -
Job work
SAEPL 0.59 &
Rent including lease rentals
Mrs. Sunitha R Gandhi 0.72 0.60
Purchase of PPE from
SAEPL ' 5.59 -
Managerial remuneration:
Mr. Rajendra J Gandhi 9.51 873
Ms. Neha Gandhi 217 2.01
Mr. Vivek Mishra 0.09 0.94
Ms. Rehana A. Rajan 0.09 .
Mr. Manoj Pannalal Jain - 522
Mr. Radhakrishnan 0.11 0.92
Mr. Shashidhar SK 6.11 -
Sitting Fee paid to
Mrs. Shubha Rao Mayya 0.50 -
Mr. Lakshmikant Gupta 0.45 -
Mr. Rajiv Mehta Nitinbhai 0.70 -
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Note
40 Related party transactions
C. Balances with related parties

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
April 01, 2017

Advance recoverable
Mr. Rajendra J Gandhi

69.62

Trade payable
PAPL
SAEPL

0.29

0.29
1.68

0.29

Payable on purchase of property, plant
and equipment

SAEPL

Trade receivables
SAEPL

Rent payable
Mrs. Sunitha R Gandhi

Remuneration payable
Mr. Rajendra J Gandhi
Ms. Neha Gandhi
Mr. Vivek Mishra
Ms. Rehana A. Rajan
Mr. Radhakrishnan
Mr. Shashidhar SK

0.60
0.15
0.07

0.36

0.39
0.15
0.06

Sitting fees pavables
Mr. Lakshmikant Gupta
Mr. Rajiv Mehta Nitinbhai

0.05
0.30

D. The remuneration of Directors and other members of Key Management Personnel during the year was as follows:

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Short-term benefits 17.51 17.18
Post-employment benefits (Refer note (i) below) 0.57 0.64
Total 18.08 17.82

Note (i) Post - employment benefits excludes gratuity which cannot be separately identified from the composite amount advised by the actuary
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41.1

41.2

Stove Kraft Limited
(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amount in Rupees Millions except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Ind AS adoption reconciliations
Reconciliation of Equity
Particulars Note No | As at March 31, As at April 01,
2018 2017
Share capital 189.00 189.00
Reserves 230.78 204.97
Equity as per Indian GAAP 419.78 393.97
Add/(Less): Ind AS Adjustment
Impact on fair valuation of Compulsory Convertible
Debentures(CCD) 1 (2,873.38) (2,719.58)
Hedge accounting on derivative instruments 2 (1.26) (6.05)
Fair valuation of derivatives 3 - (1.33)
Fair valuation of security deposits 4 (0.16) (0.18)
Discounting of provisions 5 3.03 1.88
Revenue Impact (net) 6 (1.08) 519
Government grants 7 2.52 -
Impact on fair valuation of Property, plant and equipment 8 679.14 679.14
Adjustment on account of purchase of additional stake in partnership
firm 10 (15.15) (15.15)
Equity as per Ind AS (1,786.56) (1,662.11)

Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive Income

Particulars

Note reference

For year ended
March 31, 2018

Profit as per Indian GAAP 29.18
Add/(Less): Ind AS adjustment
Impact on fair valuation of Compulsory Convertible Debentures 1 (153.80)
Fair valuation of derivatives 3 1.33
Fair valuation of security deposits 4 0.02
Discounting of provisions 3 1.15
Revenue Impact (net) [ (6.27)
Government grants 7 2.52
Recognition of actuarial Gain /(loss) on defined benefit obligation in
Other Comprehensive Income 9 (1.75)
Loss as per Ind AS (127.62)
Other comprehensive income:
Recognition of actuarial gain on defined benefit obligation and other
-comprehensive income 1 1575
Hedge accounting on derivative instruments 2 1.24
Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS (124.63)

Reconciliation of statement of cash flow:

There are no material adjustments to the statement of cash flows as reported under previous GAAP.
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(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amount in Rupees Millions except for share data or as otherwise stated)

SL

Explanatory Note

10

The Group has 1ssued Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCDs), the instrument provides the holder to get it converted into equity
shares. As per the terms of the instrument, CCDs will get converted into variable number of equity shares, the holder of the instrument
has also right to sell back the CCDs to Group after four years from the closing dates. As per Ind AS 32, the instrument is assessed as a
financial liability, the option given to the holder is treated as an embedded derivative and this derivative has to be fair valued at each
reporting date. As per Ind AS 109, Group has to measure this instrument as a whole at fair value through profit or loss. Accordingly the
Group has fair valued the CCDs at each reporting dates and recognised the fair value changes in statement of profit and loss.

The Group has taken a cross currency interest rate swap (derivative) to hedge a foreign currency floating interest rate loan. It has
designated the derivative under cash flow hedging relationship.

Under previous GAAP, at the end of every reporting date, the Group restated the foreign currency borrowing and recognised gain or loss
on restatement of borrowing under MTM receivable in Balance sheet. However under Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, the gain or loss
on restatement of borrowing is recorded in cash flow hedging reserve (under other comprehensive income).

The Group has outstanding foreign currency forward contracts to hedge its foreign currency exposure which were not fair valued. Under
Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, foreign currency forward contracts are fair valued and the resultant gain/loss is recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of profit and loss.

Under previous GAAP, security deposits were recorded at their transaction value. Under Ind AS, security deposit being a financial asset
is recognised at their fair value. Accordingly, the Group has discounted these deposits for the respective lease period and difference
between the discounted value (fair value) and the transaction value of security deposit has been recognised as prepaid rent.

The prepaid rent is amortised over the lease term and interest income is recorded on the fair value of the security deposit at the interest
rate which was. used for discounting of the security deposit. The difference in rent expense and interest income have been adjusted with
retained earnings as at the transition date and with profit for the respective period.

Under previous GAAP, discounting of provisions was not permitted. Under Ind AS, provisions are measured at discounted amounts, to
give effect to time value of money.

i. Under previous GAAP, the sale of scrap and purchase of the processed raw material are considered as different transactions. Under Ind
AS, the sale of scrap and purchase of processed raw material from job worker has to be considered as a single transaction. Hence the sale
of scrap and purchase of processed raw material are to be presented net as job worker charges.

ii. Under previous GAAP, certain types of discounts and sales schemes offered by entities to their customers were classified as expense
and recorded under other expense. Under Ind AS, these have been reduced from revenue. Such re-classifications will not have an impact
on the net profits reported by the Group

iii. The Group provides Customer loyalty programmes and the loyalty points are linked to sale transaction. The customer can redeem the

award credits by either availing the benefit under the scheme or can adjust the amount against future payable amount. Under previous
GAAP, provision was created towards such outstanding loyalty points and these were recorded as expense and corresponding liability
was recorded under trade payables. Under Ind AS, the entity identifies the points which is pending to be redeemed as at the reporting
date and the defers the revenue to the extent of fair value of these points and thereby the provision created under previous GAAP for
accrual of points is reversed under Ind AS.

i. The Group has received duty waiver on import of capital goods against meeting export obligation prescribed by the custom authorities.
Under Ind AS this benefit has been accounted as government grant and the cost of duty is included as part of the capital asset.

Under previous GAAP, property, plant and equipment were measured at cost. Under Ind AS, the Group has elected the option of fair
valuing the items of property, plant and equipment basis the requirements of Ind AS 101, First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting|
Standards for deriving the carrying value of these property, plant and equipment (*deemed cost’).

Under previous GAAP, actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit obligation were recognised in Consolidated Statement of profit and
loss. Under Ind AS, the actuarial gains and losses is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Under previous GAAP, Group had recognised goodwill on acquisition of additional share of capital in partnership firm. However, under
Ind AS any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid should be recognised directly in equity.
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Note
42 Interest in other entities
Disclosure of interest in partnership firms

Name of the partnership firm Principal activity Place of Proportion of ownership interest and voting
incorporation power held by the group
and place of As at © Asat As at
operation March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018 | April 01, 2017
Stove Kraft India Manufacturing and  |India 99% 99% 99%
selling of kitchen
appliances
Saya Industries (Refer note (1) below ) Manufacturing and  |India - - 95%
selling of kitchen
appliances

(i) Saya Industries has been dissolved as on 31st March, 2018.
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Stove Kraft Limited
(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

vi. Foreign exchange gains and losses

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at
the end of each reporting period.

For foreign currency denominated financial assets that are measured at amortised cost and FVTPL, the exchange difference are recognised
in statement of profit and loss.

B. Financial liabilities and equity instruments
i. Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilitics or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

ii. Equity Instrument

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments recognised by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received net off direct issue cost.

iii. Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.
iv. Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liability has been designated at FVTPL where it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind
AS 109 permits the entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in the Statement of
profit and loss. ¢

v. Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate i1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

vi. Foreign ea.:change gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting period,
the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the instruments and are recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate
at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the
fair value gains or losses and is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

vii. Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The

difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
statement of profit and loss.




Stove Kraft Limited

(Formerly Stove Kraft Private Limited)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amount in Rupees Millions except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Note

44 Contingent liabilities and
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018 | April 01, 2017
Contingent Liability
Indirect tax matters under appeal 65.08 61.56 47.98
Direct tax matters under appeal - 127.82 127.82
Other disputed claims 2.68 2.68 1.98
Provident fund claims 939 9.39 9.39
Tax Liability towards pending C Form 229 11.34 -
Commitment
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital
account and not provided for tangible assets (Net of advances) 18.94 27.81 224

45 During 2007, the Company (SKL) had entered into an agreement to take over the business of M/s Vardhaman Enterprises (“VE”) a
sole proprietorship firm owned by the Mr. Rajendra J. Gandhi, the Promoter and Managing Director of the Company
The Directorate General of Central Excise Intelligence (DGCEI) had issued show cause notice(s) to SKL and M/s VE on January 16,
2009 and February 24, 2009 respectively, for alleged removal of goods without payment of proper excise duty and wrongful
availment of Cenvat credit for the period 2004 to 2007. The Commissioner of Central Excise Bangalore, vide order No.’s 20/2010
and 21/2010 dated March 31, 2010 confirmed demands for non-payment of excise duty amounting to Rs 26.88 and Rs 67.84 on VE
and SKL respectively (including interest and penalty). Further, in the order no. 21/2010 the Commissioner has also disallowed
Cenvat credit reversal of Rs 7.50 and imposed a penalty of an equivalent amount to be recovered from the said Promoter.

The Company was contesting the order no. 21/2010 on SKL and certain provision (net of amounts recoverable from the Promoter)
had been accounted in the financial statements. During the year 2017-18, this matter has been settled in favour of the Company.

46 Mr. Rajendra Gandhi, Managing Director of the Company, is also a Non-Executive Director on the Board of Pigeon Appliances
Private Limited (referred as PAPL). As a result of certain disputes, which have arisen between PAPL and the Company, PAPL has
not filed its annual financial statements for financial years 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 as required in terms of Section 137 of the
Companics Act, 2013. The last date for PAPL to file annual financial statements with the Registrar of Companies (ROC) for the
financial year 2016-17 expired on October 30, 2017, as a result of which the provisions pertaining to disqualification of Directors
under section 164 (2) and vacation of Office of Director under section 167 (1) of the Companies- Act, 2013, was attracted. The
Company and Mr. Rajendra Gandhi filed a petition before the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Bangalore, on 22
November 2017 against PAPL, followed by another interim application on 30 May 2018, praying, inter alia, that the NCLT direct the
ROC to maintain status quo by not disqualifying Mr. Rajendra Gandhi from directorships of other companies (other than PAPL),
until the disposal of the main petition. The NCLT, in its interim order, dated 18 July 2018, has directed the ROC, not to disqualify
Mr. Rajendra Gandhi as a Director on the Board of the Company.

4

Py

The Group has a net deferred tax asset with respect to certain timing differences. These have not been recognised as the recognition
criteria’have not been met in accordance with the accounting policies followed by the Group.

The Group has not recognized the net deferred tax asset on the accumulated losses as there is no reasonable certainty that sufficient
future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized

a) Current Tax - During the year, the Group does not have taxable income as per regular computation and as per Minimum Alternate
Tax under section 115 JB of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

b) Deferred Tax - The timing differences mainly relates to carried forward business losses, unabsorbed depreciation and current
depreciation resulting in net deferred tax asset at end of each year, This has not been recognised as a matter of prudence.

48 The management of StoveKraft India (the firm) decided to discontinue the manufacturing operations in the firm and with effective
from 3 January,2015, the manufacturing operations in the firm had been discontinued. Stove Kraft Limited (SKL), the majority
partner in the firm, has not yet decided on alternative business plans for the firm, if any. SKL has the assured continuous financial
support to the firm to meet its obligations. Pending decision on the future business plan for the firm and based on the financial
support from SKL, the financial statements of the firm have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for property,
plant and equipment of the firm which were fair valued.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
o~
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Shashidhar SK
Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary
Membership Number: FCS 7119

Rajendra J Gand}i
Managing Director
DIN: 01646143
Place : Bengaluru
Date - June 19, 2019
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